

20101981D

HOUSE BILL NO. 1061

Offered January 8, 2020

Prefiled January 7, 2020

A BILL to amend and reenact §§ 24.2-947.2, 24.2-949.4, 24.2-950.3, 24.2-951.2, and 24.2-952.2 of the Code of Virginia, relating to elections; campaign finance; committee depositories and reimbursement.

Patrons—Adams, D.M., Cole, M.L., Delaney and Rasoul

Referred to Committee on Privileges and Elections

Be it enacted by the General Assembly of Virginia:

1. That §§ 24.2-947.2, 24.2-949.4, 24.2-950.3, 24.2-951.2, and 24.2-952.2 of the Code of Virginia are amended and reenacted as follows:

§ 24.2-947.2. Campaign depositories; reimbursements of expenses; petty cash fund.

A. Upon meeting any of the requirements of subsection A of § 24.2-947.1, the candidate shall designate a campaign depository, which shall be maintained in a financial institution within the Commonwealth, in an account properly identifying the name of and the existence of the political candidacy.

B. No candidate, campaign treasurer, or other individual shall pay any expense on behalf of a candidate, directly or indirectly, except by a check *or electronic debit* drawn on such designated depository identifying the name of the campaign committee and candidate. However, a candidate, treasurer, or other authorized member of the candidate's campaign staff may be reimbursed, by a check *or electronic debit* drawn on the designated depository, or according to the provisions of subsection C, for the payment of expenses (i) paid by him by ~~check~~, cash, *check or electronic debit*, or credit ~~or debit~~ card, (ii) made on behalf of the campaign, and (iii) fully documented by complete records of the expenditure, maintained as required by this chapter, and including receipts identifying the nature of the expenses and the names and addresses of each person paid by the recipient of the reimbursement.

C. A campaign committee ~~(a)~~ (i) may establish a petty cash fund to be utilized for the purpose of making expenditures or reimbursing verified credit card expenditures of less than \$200 if complete records of such expenditures are maintained as required by this chapter and ~~(b)~~ (ii) may transfer funds from the designated campaign depository to an account or instrument to earn interest on the funds so long as the transferred funds and earned interest are returned to the designated depository account, complete records are maintained, and all expenditures are made through the designated depository account.

D. 1. Notwithstanding the provisions of this section pertaining to campaign committee depositories and accounts, the campaign committee's treasurer may establish a separate federal compliance account in the candidate's designated campaign depository for the purpose of complying with requirements of federal law including, without limitation, restrictions on sources and amounts of campaign contributions applicable to federal candidates and officeholders. The candidate and campaign treasurer shall report all contributions and expenditures for an account established pursuant to this subsection on a consolidated basis with the candidate's campaign account established pursuant to this section in disclosure reports filed pursuant to this article. In addition, the treasurer may transfer funds from a federal compliance account created pursuant to this subsection to an account or instrument to earn interest on the funds so long as the transferred funds and earned interest are returned to the designated depository account created pursuant to subsection A, complete records are maintained, and all expenditures are made through the designated depository account.

2. A committee registered with the Federal Election Commission which is not otherwise required by this chapter to file with the State Board, shall not be deemed to have triggered such filing requirements solely by virtue of one or more contributions to one or more federal compliance accounts created pursuant to this subsection.

§ 24.2-949.4. Political action committee treasurer requirements and responsibilities.

A. The treasurer shall keep detailed and accurate accounts of all contributions turned over to and expenditures made by the committee, the treasurer, or other officer on behalf of the political action committee, or reported to the treasurer pursuant to this chapter. Such account shall set forth the date of the contribution or expenditure, its amount or value, the name and address of the person or committee making the contribution or to whom the expenditure was made, and the object or purpose of the contribution or expenditure.

Such books and records may be destroyed or discarded at any time after (i) one year from the date of filing the final report required by § 24.2-949.9 or (ii) a period of three years, whichever first occurs,

INTRODUCED

HB1061

59 unless a court of competent jurisdiction shall order their retention for a longer period.

60 B. All receipts and expenditures received or made by any political action committee, or received or
61 made on its behalf or in relation to the committee by any individual or person, except independent
62 expenditures, shall be paid over or delivered to the political action committee's treasurer or shall be
63 reported to the treasurer in such detail and form as to allow him to comply fully with this article. An
64 independent expenditure shall be reported pursuant to § 24.2-945.2 in lieu of being reported to the
65 political action committee's treasurer.

66 C. It shall be unlawful for any political action committee, its treasurer, or any person receiving
67 contributions or making expenditures on the committee's behalf or in relation to the committee, to fail to
68 report every contribution and expenditure as required by this article.

69 D. No political action committee treasurer or other individual shall pay any expense on behalf of the
70 committee, directly or indirectly, except by a check *or electronic debit* drawn on such designated
71 depository identifying the name of the political action committee. However, a treasurer or other
72 authorized officer of the political action committee may be reimbursed, by a check *or electronic debit*
73 drawn on the designated depository, for the payment of expenses (i) paid by him by ~~check~~, cash, *check*
74 *or electronic debit*, or credit ~~or debit~~ card, (ii) made on behalf of the committee, and (iii) fully
75 documented by complete records of the expenditure, maintained as required by this chapter, and
76 including receipts identifying the nature of the expenses and the names and addresses of each person
77 paid by the recipient of the reimbursement.

78 E. A treasurer of a political action committee ~~(a)~~ (i) may establish a petty cash fund to be utilized
79 for the purpose of making expenditures or reimbursing verified credit card expenditures of less than
80 \$200 if complete records of such expenditures are maintained as required by this chapter and ~~(b)~~ (ii)
81 may transfer funds from the designated campaign depository to an account or instrument to earn interest
82 on the funds so long as the transferred funds and earned interest are returned to the designated
83 depository account, complete records are maintained, and all expenditures are made through the
84 designated depository account.

85 **§ 24.2-950.3. Political party committee treasurer requirements and responsibilities.**

86 A. The treasurer shall keep detailed and accurate accounts of all contributions turned over to and
87 expenditures made by the political party committee, the treasurer, or other officer on behalf of the
88 political party committee, or reported to the treasurer pursuant to this article. Such account shall set
89 forth the date of the contribution or expenditure, its amount or value, the name and address of the
90 person or committee making the contribution or to whom the expenditure was made, and the object or
91 purpose of the contribution or expenditure.

92 Such books and records may be destroyed or discarded at any time after (i) one year from the date
93 of filing the final report required by § 24.2-950.9 or (ii) a period of three years, whichever first occurs,
94 unless a court of competent jurisdiction shall order their retention for a longer period.

95 B. All contributions and expenditures received or made by any political party committee, or received
96 or made on its behalf or in relation to the committee by any person, except independent expenditures,
97 shall be paid over or delivered to the political party committee's treasurer or shall be reported to the
98 treasurer in such detail and form as to allow him to comply fully with this article. An independent
99 expenditure shall be reported pursuant to § 24.2-945.2 in lieu of being reported to the political party
100 committee's treasurer.

101 C. It shall be unlawful for any political party committee, its treasurer, or any person receiving
102 contributions or making expenditures on the committee's behalf or in relation to the committee, to fail to
103 report every contribution and expenditure as required by this article.

104 D. No political party committee treasurer or other individual shall pay any expense on behalf of the
105 committee, directly or indirectly, except by a check *or electronic debit* drawn on such designated
106 depository identifying the name of the political party committee. However, a treasurer or other
107 authorized officer of the political party committee may be reimbursed, by a check *or electronic debit*
108 drawn on the designated depository, for the payment of expenses (i) paid by him by ~~check~~, cash, *check*
109 *or electronic debit*, or credit ~~or debit~~ card, (ii) made on behalf of the party committee, and (iii) fully
110 documented by complete records of the expenditure, maintained as required by this chapter, and
111 including receipts identifying the nature of the expenses and the names and addresses of each person
112 paid by the recipient of the reimbursement.

113 E. A treasurer of a political party committee ~~(a)~~ (i) may establish a petty cash fund to be utilized for
114 the purpose of making expenditures or reimbursing verified credit card expenditures of less than \$200 if
115 complete records of such expenditures are maintained as required by this chapter and ~~(b)~~ (ii) may
116 transfer funds from the designated campaign depository to an account or instrument to earn interest on
117 the funds so long as the transferred funds and earned interest are returned to the designated depository
118 account, complete records are maintained, and all expenditures are made through the designated
119 depository account.

120 **§ 24.2-951.2. Referendum committee treasurer requirements and responsibilities.**

A. The treasurer shall keep detailed and accurate accounts of all contributions turned over to and expenditures made by the referendum committee, the treasurer, or other officer on behalf of the referendum committee, or reported to the treasurer pursuant to this article. Such account shall set forth the date of the contribution or expenditure, its amount or value, the name and address of the person or committee making the contribution or to whom the expenditure was made, and the object or purpose of the contribution or expenditure.

Such books and records may be destroyed or discarded at any time after (i) one year from the date of filing the final report required by § 24.2-951.9 or (ii) a period of three years, whichever first occurs, unless a court of competent jurisdiction shall order their retention for a longer period.

B. All contributions and expenditures received or made by any referendum committee, or received or made on its behalf or in relation to the committee by any person, except independent expenditures, shall be paid over or delivered to the referendum committee's treasurer or shall be reported to the treasurer in such detail and form as to allow him to comply fully with this article. An independent expenditure shall be reported pursuant to § 24.2-945.2 in lieu of being reported to the referendum committee's treasurer.

C. It shall be unlawful for any referendum committee, its treasurer, or any person receiving contributions or making expenditures on the committee's behalf or in relation to the committee, to fail to report every contribution and expenditure as required by this article.

D. No referendum committee treasurer or other individual shall pay any expense on behalf of the committee, directly or indirectly, except by a check or *electronic debit* drawn on such designated depository identifying the name of the referendum committee. However, a treasurer or other authorized officer of the referendum committee may be reimbursed, by a check or *electronic debit* drawn on the designated depository, for the payment of expenses (i) paid by him by ~~check~~, cash, *check or electronic debit*, or credit or ~~debit~~ card, (ii) made on behalf of the committee, and (iii) fully documented by complete records of the expenditure, maintained as required by this chapter, and including receipts identifying the nature of the expenses and the names and addresses of each person paid by the recipient of the reimbursement.

E. A treasurer of a referendum committee ~~(a)~~ (i) may establish a petty cash fund to be utilized for the purpose of making expenditures or reimbursing verified credit card expenditures of less than \$200 if complete records of such expenditures are maintained as required by this chapter and ~~(b)~~ (ii) may transfer funds from the designated campaign depository to an account or instrument to earn interest on the funds so long as the transferred funds and earned interest are returned to the designated depository account, complete records are maintained, and all expenditures are made through the designated depository account.

§ 24.2-952.2. Inaugural committee treasurer requirements and responsibilities.

A. The treasurer shall keep detailed and accurate accounts of all contributions turned over to and expenditures made by the committee, the treasurer, or other officer on behalf of the inaugural committee, or reported to the treasurer pursuant to this article. Such account shall set forth the date of the contribution or expenditure, its amount or value, the name and address of the person or committee making the contribution or to whom the expenditure was made, and the object or purpose of the contribution or expenditure.

Such books and records may be destroyed or discarded at any time after (i) one year from the date of filing the final report required by § 24.2-952.7 or (ii) a period of three years, whichever first occurs, unless a court of competent jurisdiction shall order their retention for a longer period.

B. All contributions and expenditures received or made by any inaugural committee, or received or made on its behalf or in relation to the committee by any person, except independent expenditures, shall be paid over or delivered to the inaugural committee's treasurer or shall be reported to the treasurer in such detail and form as to allow him to comply fully with this article. An independent expenditure shall be reported pursuant to § 24.2-945.2 in lieu of being reported to the inaugural committee's treasurer.

C. It shall be unlawful for any inaugural committee, its treasurer, or any person receiving contributions or making expenditures on the committee's behalf or in relation to the committee, to fail to report every contribution and expenditure as required by this article.

D. No inaugural committee treasurer or other individual shall pay any expense on behalf of the committee, directly or indirectly, except by a check or *electronic debit* drawn on such designated depository identifying the name of the inaugural committee. However, a treasurer or other authorized officer of the inaugural committee may be reimbursed, by a check or *electronic debit* drawn on the designated depository, for the payment of expenses (i) paid by him by ~~check~~, cash, *check or electronic debit*, or credit or ~~debit~~ card, (ii) made on behalf of the committee, and (iii) fully documented by complete records of the expenditure, maintained as required by this article, and including receipts identifying the nature of the expenses and the names and addresses of each person paid by the recipient of the reimbursement.

E. A treasurer of an inaugural committee ~~(a)~~ (i) may establish a petty cash fund to be utilized for the

182 purpose of making expenditures or reimbursing verified credit card expenditures of less than \$200 if
183 complete records of such expenditures are maintained as required by this chapter and ~~(b)~~ (ii) may
184 transfer funds from the designated campaign depository to an account or instrument to earn interest on
185 the funds so long as the transferred funds and earned interest are returned to the designated depository
186 account, complete records are maintained, and all expenditures are made through the designated
187 depository account.